5/17/00

NOTE:  The following is the Government’s response to the comments received as a result of the mandatory Pre-Solicitation Meeting held on May 8.  Potential offerors are cautioned that the resultant solicitation will take precedence over any direction given prior to the date of issuance of the solicitation.

1.  The following questions/comments/concerns were received regarding the Standard Industrial Code (SIC) classification for the T&E procurement under MASS:


a.  SIC 8711, with a size standard of $4M, is too restrictive. 

b. Recommend SIC code change from 8711 to 7379 (Computer Related Services, Not Elsewhere Classified, or 7373 Computer Integrated Systems Design).  I wanted to bring to your attention the fact that much of the work anticipated to be pooled under this contract is currently under 7373 or 7379.

c. Our SBA Business Opportunity Specialist advised us that there are three size standards for SIC 8711.  That being the case, it would appear that $13.5M is more appropriate for this procurement.

d. SIC Code of 8711 is appropriate, but the size standard should be at $20 million dollars.

e. Recommend retaining 8711 with $4M size standard for the small business portion of the procurement.

f. We propose a SIC 4813 (Telephone Communications, except Radiotelephone) to enable companies under 1500 employees to have the opportunity to compete among other similar size small businesses for a prime contractor.  

g. By limiting 8711 to only $4M, the small business group will be very small and limited as to services that group could offer.

h. Keep the SIC Code dollar level of $4M.  Use the FAA's acquisition prerogatives to establish a fourth category of competition for companies at the $20 million dollar level.  In this manner you would still give the small and very small businesses an opportunity to lead efforts while not cutting out the segment between 50 people and 200+ employees.  

i. During the May 8, 2000 Industry presentation the SEDB $4M limit was discussed. It was not clear if the same limit was being considered for SBs.  An alternative approach is to use 500 people for the SB standard.  This approach will encourage broader participation from companies with the technical talent that the Technical Center wants to attract.

Answer to #1a through 1i:  SIC 8711 will be the overall classification code applied to this procurement.  A $4M size standard will be applicable to the SEDB competitions.  A 500 employee size standard will be applicable to the small business competitions.

Note(s):  

(1)  The current ADETEC contract contains SIC 8711.

(2)  The SIC codes for other major service areas (i.e., Maintenance Support, Facility/Laboratory Support, Information Security, R&D) will be determined at a later date.

2.  What will determine the number of awards?  

Answer to #2:  As previously stated in the responses to the market survey posted on the internet on 5/5/00 (question #14) and as reiterated at Pre-solicitation Meeting on 5/8/00, there is no pre-determined number of contracts to be awarded.  

3.  Could a subcontractor participate in the T&E solicitation as a subcontractor for two different primes?  

Answer to #3:    No.  Subcontractors can only be proposed by one prime contractor.

4.  Would the Government consider allowing subcontractors to propose (once per company) in each competitive category for the initial competition?

Answer to #4:  No.

5.  As a large business subcontractor to a winning prime, in the large business open competition of the T&E service area, would we be eligible to subcontract with any of the winning primes in the T&E service area for Task Area work?

Answer to #5:  Yes.   

6.  As a large business subcontractor to a losing prime, in the large business open competition of the T&E service area, would we be eligible to subcontract with any of the winning primes in the T&E service area for Task Area work?

Answer to #6:  Yes.

7.  We understand that there may be a question before you asking if primes have to submit their subcontractors.  If the answer to this question is that primes do not have to submit their subcontractors, how do the subcontractors qualify for the T&E service area work?

Answer to #7:  Yes, as part of their proposal submission to the T&E solicitation, prime contractors will have to identify their subcontractors.

8.  What are the various ways a large business could qualify to be a subcontractor in the T&E service area?

Answer to #8:  A large business can only be proposed as a subcontractor by one prime contractor under the T&E solicitation.

9.  Are the bids going to be not-to-exceed rates?

Answer to #9:  We anticipate utilizing ceiling rates.

10.  How does the FAA plan to determine whether a task order is SEDB, Small Business, or Full & Open?

Answer to #10:  The Contracting Officer, along with the COTR and Small Business Utilization Specialist (if needed), will determine which category to solicit the proposed task order in.

11.  Can a company prime in more than one functional area of the base contract (i.e. Maintenance, Facility/Laboratory Support, etc.)?  

Answer to #11:  We anticipate it will be possible for T&E primes to participate as primes in the other major service areas.

12.  Does the FAA envision in the QA requirement that companies must have defined processes that include ISO 9001 registration?

Answer to #12:  If required, it will be addressed in the solicitation.

13.  Will there be an opportunity to ask questions after the solicitation has been issued?

Answer to #13:  Yes; however, we anticipate questions to requested to be received within 10 days after issuance of the solicitation.

14.  How many years’ rates do you anticipate requiring with the proposal? Will you accept an index based escalation/recalculation formula?  How will the Government insure these rates will be applied to the tasks (To prevent unrealistic pricing for the initial qualification)?

Answer to #14:  To be addressed in the solicitation.

15.  Will you require the small business plan be submitted with the proposal or will this be negotiated after award?  Also will quality, configuration, and or management plans be required with the proposal, and, if so, will they be excluded from the page count limits?

Answer to #15:  A master small business subcontracting plan will be required with the submission of proposals.  The requirement for any additional plans will be addressed in the solicitation.

16.  Will the rates provided in our response be ceiling rates?  Will indirect ceilings be applied to any CP work?

Answer to #16:  Yes, we anticipate requesting ceiling rates. 

17.  If different rates/cost structures may be bid for subsequent task orders, what is the FAA's contractural requirement for the 10 years of T&M rates that are to be proposed?  Will the FAA require that these rates be used for some task orders?

Answer to #17:   Ceiling rates will be requested under the solicitation.  Further information on these rates will be addressed in the solicitation.

18.  Does the FAA anticipate providing labor categories/descriptions in the solicitation or will the contractor be required to develop the categories? If the FAA does anticipate providing labor categories/descriptions, how many labor categories/descriptions will the FAA provide?

Answer to #18:  We will provide number of labor categories and descriptions in the solicitation.  

19.  We would like to submit an alternative to proposing subcontractors in our response.  We are recommending that proposals be submitted for the prime contractor only. Since the subcontractor(s) could vary greatly dependant upon the SOW of each delivery order, the composite of each team would also vary. Since the FAA is on a tight timeline, this alternative would also reduce the evaluation time for the FAA.

Answer to #19:  Proposals requested will include prime and subcontractor identification.

20.  What is the total page limit of the proposal? Does this limit include all plans and pricing?

Answer to #20:  We estimate 50 to 75 pages for a technical proposal submission.  This limit will not apply to the cost/price proposal.

21.  How many past performance references will be required?  Of the number above, how many past performance references must be specific to the SOW?

Answer to #21:  To be addressed in the solicitation.

22.  Will the Strategic Question be specific to one or more of the “work areas” (Tower, enroute, FSS, weather, oceanic, etc.) or will they be T&E process based, without reference to specific FAA program goals?  

Answer to #22:  To be addressed in the solicitation.

23.  Will SEI evaluation results be a criteria in the evaluation, or be used in the selection process?

Answer to #23:  To be addressed in the solicitation.

24.  Will a company's technical training capability for its employees be evaluated, as the enhancement of the workforce is a goal of the effort?

Answer to #24:  To be evaluated under the Management Approach Factor.

25.  What is the FAA's latest best estimate for the release date of the solicitation so that we may line up the appropriate resources to respond?

Answer to #25:  We anticipate by the end of May.

26.  Can a small business be a subcontractor under a large business and be a subcontractor to a SEDB or to a SB in the same service area?

Answer to #26:  No.  Under the T&E solicitation, subcontractors can only be proposed by one prime contractor.

27.  Does a subcontractor need to be qualified on the initial process in order to become a subcontractor to a large business in the same service area?

Answer to #27:  No.  A subcontractor does not have to be proposed under the initial T&E solicitation in order to be eligible to be proposed by a prime contractor for a potential task order requirement.

28.  If a small business is qualified as prime on the initial process and chooses not to bid on the task order competition, can the small business be a subcontractor to another small business in the same service area?

Answer to #28:  No.  A prime SB contractor who chooses not to propose on a task order competition can not subcontract with another SB for that task.

29.  If a small business is not qualified as a prime on the initial process, does it have the opportunity to be a subcontractor with another company, i.e. SEDB, small or large business in the same service area?

Answer to #29:  Yes.  A SB who does not receive a prime contract under the T&E solicitation does have the opportunity to be a subcontractor for task order requirements (if the prime chooses to utilize them).

30.  If a small business is awarded a task order as a prime, what happens to its existing subcontracting agreements in the same service area?

Answer to #30:  If a SB is awarded a task order, the SB can either utilize the proposed subcontractor that were identified in their original proposal or propose another.

31.  Is the Government considering for very small business set-asides?

Answer to #31:  The Government will not utilize very small business set-asides under this procurement.

